
 

 

 

 

STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION 

MINUTES OF 12 SEPTEMBER 2006 

MLK ROOM CAMPUS CENTER 

4. 32pm 

 

ATTENDANCE: 
Absent: T. Francis, C. Vargas 
Arrived Late: J. Alfonzo 
Left Early: None 
Guests: Rebecca Frempong (MSA), Karl-Lydie Jean-Baptiste (MSA & The Log), Jenn 
Runyan (PC, SCA), Roald Osvold, Nathan DelLlano (Swim Team), John Hayes, Maura 
Grayson (PC), Michaelina Amolo (MassPIRG, College Democrats), Justina Polvere (SSS 
Council), Keith Acton (Theatre), Ben Navon (The Log), Matthew Cogliano (Trustee), 
Donny MacLaren (The Log) 
 
    
I. MINUTES:  
No minutes approved. Two sets will be approved next week as well as the minutes  

 
II. PRESIDENTS REPORT: 
 

¥ President Mitchell welcomed the Senate and gallery introduced himself 
and invited the Senate members to reintroduce themselves. 

¥ President Mitchell first noted that the meeting scheduled for Halloween 
(31 October 2006) is cancelled. 

¥ President Mitchell then introduced Nathalie Hebert from Counseling and 
Health Services. Ms. Hebert informed the Senate that the Emergency 
Preparedness Task Force would have a session on Monday, 18 September 
2006 at 11:00 am in Veterans Hall. This session will focus on the bird flu 
or avian flu and what actions students can take to care for themselves in 
the event an outbreak occurs in Massachusetts. Ms. Herbert distributed a 
flier to those present and invited them to attend. 



¥ President Mitchell then introduced Shawn Newton, Assistant Director of 
Multicultural Affairs. Mr. Newton told the Senate about the “No Place for 
Hate” program. Mayor Driscoll is attempting to get the city of Salem 
certified by the Anti-Defamation League in this program. Mr. Newton is 
the College’s liaison to the city on this project. This is a diversity 
promotion throughout the city. The city would like the more students get 
involved in the community and help in this matter. Mr. Newton suggested 
that any interested students attend the committee’s meeting on 28 
September 2006 at 10:00 am in the City Hall Annex located at 120 
Washington Street. Mr. Newton’s would like any interested students to 
notify him. His office is located in 224 Meier Hall.  

¥ Joe Donovan, Interim Vice President for Finance is looking to start a 
committee to explore options on reducing the price of textbooks. 
Interested students should contact President Mitchell. 

¥ President Mitchell reminded Senators that the annual team building retreat 
to Merrowvista is 29 September through 1 October 2006. This is a 
mandatory event. Dr. Brossoit asked what the expectations of the Senate 
would be at Merrowvista. President Mitchell stated that those would be 
covered next week when after the Freshman Class Senators have been 
installed. Tentatively, we will be leaving around 4:00 pm on 29 
September. 

¥ Enterprise Rent-a-Car Scholarship is back. It is open for Sophomores and 
Juniors who hold a leadership role amounting to at least twelve hours per 
week during the school year and have a minimum GPA of 2.5. Career 
Services has further information. 

¥ President Mitchell reminded students that much of the parking at Central 
Campus would be utilized for guests attending the dedication of the 
Bertolon School of Business on Thursday.  

 
III. VICE PRESIDENT’S REPORT: 
 

¥ Vice President Theberge reminded the Senate that Ellen Gootblatt will be 
speaking 13 September at 7:00 pm in Veterans Hall. Senator Bottoni noted 
that Freshman Elections are scheduled for 13-14 September and the last 
time slot gets done at 7:00 pm. President Mitchell explained that since a 
full ballot was not achieved, elections were not being held. Students will 
be screened-in by the method outlined in the SGA Constitution and 
Bylaws.  

¥ The first SSC Blood Drive of the year will be Friday 6 October. A sign-up 
sheet will be circulated next week for Senators to assist by either giving 
blood or helping logistically. 

¥ Haunted Happenings is coming up soon. Vice President Theberge will 
have more details on precisely what help is needed next week. Vice 
President Theberge also noted that since most of the Senate is involved 



with other groups and clubs, a system will be devised concerning 
conflicting requirements. 

 
IV. TREASURER’S REPORT:  
 

¥ Treasurer Meadows noted that Finance Committee still needs five to six 
more people. Interested Senators should contact Treasurer Meadows after 
this meeting. Finance Committee’s duties are outlined in the SGA 
Constitution. The first meeting will be held next Thursday 21 September 
2006 at 6:30 pm. Dr. Brossoit asked how much funding SGA appropriates. 
Treasurer Meadows responded that it is approximately $305,000.  

 
V. PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: 
 

¥ Public Relations Executive Vitalone noted that the Public Relations 
Committee is still seeking members. Interested students can place their 
information in his mailbox in the SGA office.  

¥ Public Relations Executive Vitalone believes that The Log will be doing a 
cover story on Ellen Gootblatt’s visit. 

 
VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT:  
 

¥ Secretary Greenman noted that there are slots currently for 3 Senior 
Senators, 2 Junior Senators, 3 Sophomore Senators, the Assistant 
Treasurer, Chair of Judicial Affairs and Chair of Student Life. Any 
interested party should stop by the SGA office to pick up a screen-in 
application as soon as possible. President Mitchell noted that descriptions 
of all positions are in the SGA Constitution. 

¥ Secretary Greenman requested that anyone who did not receive an email 
from him in the last week send him an email so minutes and 
announcements can be distributed without creating paper waste.  

¥ At Sharon Rivers’ request, Secretary Greenman explained office hours and 
noted that a sign up sheet is in the SGA office. Office hours start next 
week and are subject to the attendance policy in the SGA Bylaws. 
Secretary Greenman also explained that Senators are required to serve on 
at least one SGA standing committee and one Contract or Non-Contract 
Committee. These will be assigned over the course of next week. 

 
President Mitchell interrupted the agenda for an introduction from Public Safety. 
 Deputy Chief Shane Rodriguez welcomed all the students back to the college. He 
noted their Department’s new focus on being involved in the community. The 
Department is also willing to open its budget and cosponsor events. Deputy Chief noted 
that Chief Angling sends his regards. Deputy Chief Rodriguez noted that a number of 
new officers are headed to training and more officers are being hired to replace those that 



have left the Department. The new officers are headed to train at the MBTA training 
facility for twenty-three weeks before they return to campus.  
 Deputy Chief Rodriguez noted the new downtown shuttle bus and it’s schedule 
(which is available on the web through Public Safety’s website), the new Broadway 
Street parking lot with forty-five to fifty spaces, and the new option to park downtown in 
the Pickering Warf garages and get your parking slip validated at the Clipper Card office. 
The Clipper Card is also expanding its sphere of operation and Omega Pizza will be 
accepting the Clipper Card in the future along with businesses in downtown Salem. 
Senator Brennan asked if the downtown shuttle would look different. Deputy Chief 
Rodriguez states that all shuttles are Cavalier Coaches but the downtown shuttle is 
marked with a sign. Ms. Rivers asked if it was still possible for students to call Public 
Safety to ask where the shuttle was. Deputy Rodriguez said that it was still allowed, 
however, students must also realize that traffic often creates unavoidable delays. 
At this point, the guests from Public Safety left the meeting. 
 
VII. SENIOR CLASS REPORT:   
 

¥ Senator Bottoni told the Senate that a petition circulated all day Monday 11 
September on one particular shuttle bus. By the end of the day it appeared to 
be at least ten pages of signatures. The issue is that students can no longer 
stand on the shuttle due to safety concerns and the bus not having appropriate 
hand rails for standing. This is causing students to be late to class. The 
whereabouts of the petition is unknown.  

 
VIII. JUNIOR CLASS REPORT:   
 

¥ No Report. 
 
IX. SOPHOMORE CLASS REPORT:   
 

¥ No Report. 
 
X. FRESHMAN CLASS REPORT:   
 

¥ No Senators. 
 

XI. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS:  
RULES 

¥ Chair Slazar noted that she discussed Dr. Brossoit and Bill Murphy 
regarding putting elections online. Chair Slazar will meet with Mr. 
Murphy in the coming week to iron out any issues. Chair Slazar has 
contacted other colleges regarding their process of online voting.  

¥ Chair Slazar is in the process of rewording the elections portion of the 
SGA Constitution to reflect online voting.  This will hopefully be 
available next week. 



¥ Chair Slazar discussed the Rules Committee’s responsibilities. These are 
to review and make recommendations concerning the SGA Constitution 
and the constitutions of other groups and clubs. 

STUDENT LIFE 
¥ President Mitchell gave a description of the Student Life Committee’s 

duties. These include Clipper Card issues, residence life issues and all 
concerns students have regarding life on- or off-campus which pertain to 
the College. 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 
¥ Secretary Greenman described the duties of the Academic Affairs 

Committee, which include all academic concerns on campus such as 
textbooks, curriculum concerns, registration, academic advising, etc. 
Secretary Greenman also informed the Senate on the progress of Project 
120. The proposal drafted by Vice President of Academic Affairs Lapkin 
is currently in committee. Dr. Brossoit noted that this is perhaps the 
greatest change SGA has affected in a long time.  

GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 
¥ Chair Charbonneau noted that the Governmental Relations Committee 

deals with all concerns that are of a governmental nature, such as local, 
state and federal government. Chair Charbonneau plans to bring back the 
“Did You Know” fliers begun last year. The successful resolution of the 
Bates traffic light timing issue was lauded. Dr. Brossoit asked when the 
primary election for the Commonwealth is. It will be held on 19 
September 2006. President Mitchell noted that the general election is 7 
November 2006. 

JUDICIAL AFFAIRS 
¥ Dr. Brossoit explained the duties of the Judicial Affairs Committee and the 

partnership unique to Salem State College between the students and 
administration regarding the judicial process. Interested students should 
contact either President Mitchell or Dr. Brossoit. 

  
XII. OLD BUSINESS:   
 

¥ President Mitchell noted that during Welcome Week, SGA hosted Brian 
Callan. Between five and six hundred people attended. Mr. Callan hopes he 
will be able to return next year. 

¥ President Mitchell noted that comedian Robert Kelly would be performing 
this year and Patrice O’Neal will be performing with him. 

 
XIII. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

¥ Senator Bottoni asked about the screen-in process for the Freshman Senate. 
President Mitchell discussed the processes. Dr. Brossoit noted that the election 
was not being held because there was no competition. 



¥ President Mitchell noted that Homecoming is approximately one month away. 
President Mitchell will be seeking someone to head a committee focused on 
increasing SGA’s presence. Interested Senators should see President Mitchell 
after the meeting. Senator Berry asked what the theme would be this year. The 
theme is “Our Haunted Homecoming”. Ms. Rivers noted that guidelines will be 
released by the Campus Center office in the near future. 

¥ President Mitchell discussed the Vikings Go Biking program. The bikes will be 
out on-campus this weekend. Keys must be signed out in the SGA office. Senator 
Berry asked about advertisements for the program. Public Relations Executive 
Vitalone noted that there would be advertising soon. Dr. Brossoit asked about 
hiring a student to handle maintenance concerns. There are bikes that have been 
donated and purchased by different groups, so there may be some issues regarding 
knowing which bikes are available. President Mitchell noted the $500 donation 
from the Alumni Association last year. Senator Brennan asked if there was an 
issue with bike theft in the past. Senator Alfonzo noted that there were issues of 
that sort. Dr. Brossoit noted that the program was begun and administered in such 
a manner that would take theft and damage into account. There was also some 
confusion as to whether bikes were “leased” to students. The program is for use as 
needed. The bikes are not signed out, the key signed out is to all the bikes and is 
for the access. Ben Navon questioned if helmets would be given out. Dr. Brossoit 
noted that legal counsel advised that the concern of head lice prevented such a 
program. The waiver signed by students prior to receiving a key addresses the 
issue of bike safety being the concern of the student. 

¥ Student Trustee Cogliano introduced himself. He brought to light over the 7% 
increase in tuition that amounts to approximately $400.00 annually per student. 
The increase is attributed mostly to inflation and the rising cost of fuel. Trustee 
Cogliano did not have a vote at the meeting because his term of office began in 
June. His first meeting as trustee is in October. Dr. Brossoit noted that Trustee 
Cogliano is a voting member of the Board of Trustees and has the same vote as 
the non-student members. 

¥ Ms. Rivers explained the SGA binders she distributed before the meeting began. 
She noted that there is a calendar with all required SGA events listed (aside from 
the 6 October 2006 Blood Drive from 9:00 am – 3:00 pm). The binders include a 
copy of the SGA Constitution. The materials in the binders are referenced 
frequently in meetings, so they need to be brought to every meeting. Ms. Rivers 
reiterated that Senators need to sign up for office hours (which start the week of 
18 September 2006) and that all Senate members have a mailbox which needs to 
be checked at least weekly. Ms. Rivers’ email needs to be placed in people’s 
address books, particularly Yahoo! and Hotmail. Her email address is 
srivers@salemstate.edu. 

 
XIV.  DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 



¥ Dr. Brossoit noted that he oversees the judicial process at the college. Members of 
SGA are ineligible to sever on the Judicial Board, but Dr. Brossoit requested that 
Senate members have people who are good for that type of position contact him. 

¥ Dr. Brossoit also noted that the Graduate School has a number of open houses 
throughout the fall. The Graduate School’s website will have the most accurate 
information. 

¥ Sasha Rosen, the campus organizer for MassPIRG, discussed the initiatives 
MassPIRG is addressing this Fall. MassPIRG has been on campus for 
approximately thirty years and address public interest issues. The group is funded 
by a $7.00 fee that may be waived. This fee is voted on every two years by the 
students. MassPIRG campaigns this Fall are: 1) The New Voter’s project, the 
largest initiatve in history to register new voters. 18 October is the deadline to 
register to vote. 2) Hunger and Homelessness, a campaign to combat these ills is 
continuing from last year. 3) Recycling widely across campus. Global warming, 
renewable energy, and student debt concerns will be addressed as well. On 8 
November, the federal Committee on Higher Education will be holding hearings. 
Trustee Cogliano attended last year. The initial meeting for MassPIRG will be 20 
Wednesday in the Martin Luther King, Jr. Room at 7:30pm. Dr. Brossoit noted 
that Congress tends to ignore the concerns of students due to their low voter 
turnout. Ms. Rivers asked if MassPIRG would address how to get absentee ballots 
during their campaign for voter registration. Ms. Rosen noted they would. 

¥ Program Council is hosting the movie “click” at Central Campus’ front lawn 
tonight. 

¥ The Gay-Straight Alliance is having a welcome reception Wednesday 13 
September at 4:00 pm in the Underground. 

¥ Jenn Runyan noted that Program Council will be selling tickets to comedy show 
featuring Patrice O’Neal from 11:00 am  to 1:00 pm. Tickets are $10.00. Senator 
Berry noted that the Welcome Reception for Students of Color is 13 September in 
the Martin Luther King Room from 11:00am – 2:00 pm and from 5:00 pm – 7:00 
pm. Shawn Newton and the Multicultural Affairs office plan this event. All 
students are welcome to attend. The Multicultural Student Association’s open 
house is 20 September in the Underground. 

 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT  
TIME: 5:47 pm 

 
MOTION: Secretary Greenman made a motion to adjourn. 

/Vitalone 
(Unanimous) 

 
SUBMITTED BY GREGORY GREENMAN 

 


